PROVI SI ONAL

E/ 1997/ SR 20
16 Septenber 1997

ENGLI SH
Oiginal: FRENCH

ECONOM C AND SOOI AL COUNC L
Subst anti ve session of 1997
PROVI SI ONAL  SUMVARY RECORD OF THE 20t h MEETI NG

Hel d at the Pal ais des Nations, Ceneva,
on Wednesday, 9 July 1997, at 10 a.m

Presi dent : M. GALUSKA (Czech Republic)
later: M. HENZE ( Ger many)
(Vi ce-President)
later: M. GALUSKA (Czech Republic)
(President)
CONTENTS

COCRDI NATI ON CF THE POLI A ES AND ACTIM TI ES OF THE SPEC ALI ZED AGENCI ES AND
OTrHER BODI ES OF THE UNI TED NATI ONS SYSTEM RELATED TO THE FOLLON NG THEMES:

(a) MAI NSTREAM NG THE GENDER PERSPECTI VE | NTO ALL PQOLI O ES AND
PROGRAMMES | N THE UNI TED NATI ONS SYSTEM

Corrections to this record should be submtted in one of the working
| anguages. They should be set forth in a nenorandum and al so i ncorporated in
a copy of the record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this

docunment to the Oficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Pal ais des
Nat i ons, Ceneva.

GE. 97-62679 (E)



E/ 1997/ SR 20
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 10.10 a.m

COORDI NATI ON OF THE PQOLI G ES AND ACTIVITIES OF THE SPEC ALI ZED AGENCI ES AND
OTHER BCDI ES OF THE UNI TED NATI ONS SYSTEM RELATED TO THE FOLLOW NG THEMES
(agenda item 4)

(a) MAI NSTREAM NG THE GENDER PERSPECTI VE | NTO ALL PCLI O ES AND
PROGRAMMES | N THE UNI TED NATI ONS SYSTEM ( E/ 1997/ 66)

The PRESIDENT invited the Council to begin its debate on questions

of coordination by considering agenda item4 (a) and requested the Speci al
Advi ser to the Secretary-Ceneral on Gender |ssues and Advancenent of Wnen to
introduce the report on the topic (E/ 1997/ 66) and to noderate the debate.
Ms. KING (Special Adviser to the Secretary-Ceneral on Gender

| ssues and Advancenent of Wbnen) said that the goal of gender mainstream ng
was such that all the conponents of the United Nations systemand all
i ntergovernnental agencies had a responsibility in its attainment. The
outcone of the day's deliberations should be a set of clear reconmendations to
those actors. Whatever their area of activity, their primary goal was the
i mprovenent of the lives of wonen and men; for it was wonen and nmen who
ultimately benefited from or were di sadvantaged by, the concepts enpl oyed and
the measures taken. However, as long as the issue was viewed fromthe angle
of “people” or the “community” without explicitly taking into account the
di fferent concerns and experience of nmen and wonen, there was every |ikelihood
that the results of the nmeasures adopted woul d perpetuate wonen's inequality.

Virtually all the conponents of the system had pl edged their support for
gender nainstreaning in the followup to the Fourth Wrld Conference on Wnen;
but little had actually changed. The Council and all States Menbers shoul d
recogni ze that the principle of equality between men and women, which was
recogni zed in the Charter, was of vital inportance to the conprehensive
i npl enentation of the results of the recent international conferences. The
new approach to achi eving that objective, which would include, in particular,
systemati c use of gender-specific analyses in all aspects of the work of the
United Nations, should be an integral part of the O ganization's programe of
reform The vigorous advocates of the cause of wonen were best suited to

bri ng about a change in traditional nodes of thought and analysis, which were



E/ 1997/ SR 20
page 3

responsi bl e for countless nunbers of the world s wonen being systemcally
di sadvant aged. However, their success woul d depend on the readi ness of other
actors to join themin formng strategic alliances

Coordi nation should not be restricted to progranmmes and units
specifically responsible for women's issues: every issue should be
consi dered, and every decision taken, with full consideration of gender
factors. To do so required resolute political commtnent by Menber States
and the adoption of concrete neasures by the system s conponents to
institutionalize the inclusion of gender-specific factors.

The recommendati ons nmade by the Secretary-General in his report were
directed at putting words into practice. The five debating panellists would
address several issues concerning the coordination of gender mainstream ng,
based on their experience within their respective organi zati ons, and woul d
certainly describe exanpl es of successful coordination, the obstacles
encountered and the appropriate remedies. Their frank assessnment of the
current situation would assist Menber States in reaching agreed concl usions.

Ms. OGATA (United Nations H gh Conmi ssioner for Refugees) said
that the progress made since the Beijing Conference was far fromsatisfactory.
A total of 38.7 per cent of UNHCR s personnel was fermale. She underscored the
i nportance of the current neeting for UNHCR which, in nore than 122 countries,
was endeavouring to protect wormen fromviolence and the trauna of war, to
ensure they had equal access to basic assistance, to hel p them becone
sel f-supporting and to enable themfreely to return to their hones w thout
fear. For all too |ong refugee wonen had been considered to be particularly
vul nerable; it was necessary to recogni ze the decisive social and econom c
role they played and their contribution to preserving famly and comunity
l'ife and seeking solutions to refugee probl ens.

Wiere protection for refugee wonmen was concerned, it was apparent that
refugee status was increasingly being granted to wonmen who were persecuted on
account of their sex. Training projects had been devel oped to conbat the
rel uctance of wonen victinms to seek justice and to protect their rights when
in distress. UNHCR had made great efforts to equip refugee canps with
protective devices and had adopted gui delines on preventing and responding to
sexual viol ence against refugees. The conbination of security neasures and of

soci al measures desi gned by wonen had hel ped to reduce viol ence.



E/ 1997/ SR 20
page 4

In ternms of assistance, UNHCR was endeavouring to ensure that food
di stribution increasingly involved woren. |ts assistance progranmes were
desi gned to be sel f-supportive and to enpower refugee wonen. Education and
information were inportant in that respect. UNHCR had devel oped “quick i npact
projects” to achieve the post-conflict reintegration of refugees within
society. The projects, which had first of all been designed for
Central America, had been adapted to Rnanda and Bosnia and inpl enented with
the participation of, and essentially on behalf of, women.

Cooperation between institutions, CGovernnents, host countries and
ref ugees shoul d be enhanced. |Inter-agency collaboration had al ready i nproved.
The search for common positions had, for exanple, nade it possible to obtain
results with regard to the discrimnation suffered by Afghan refugee wonen.
It woul d perhaps be desirable to include an optional protocol on woren in the
various nenoranda of understandi ng concl uded between the United Nations
agencies. UNHCR al so cooperated closely with NG in capacity-building

Finally, she referred to the security of humanitarian workers, and in
particul ar femal e hunanitarian workers, and suggested that the security
gui del i nes for wonen, drawn up in 1995, should be reviewed to reflect the
specific risks facing female staff serving in the field and to include
procedures for systenatically reporting any threats or violence specifically
ai med at wonen.

M. AHMED (Associate Administrator, United Nations Devel oprent

Programme (UNDP)) said that it had to be clearly understood that gender
mai nstreanm ng went beyond the inplenentati on of projects focusing on wonen and
sought to ensure that wonen's priorities, and not just those of men, were
taken into account in developing and inplenmenting policies. UNDP, in
conjunction with the United Nations Devel oprent Fund for Wnen (UNIFEVM and
its other partners, was endeavouring to strengthen the inplementation of the
Beijing Platformfor Action. It had carried out a study into mainstreani ng
activities in 20 countries and had conducted consultations on the subject in
conjunction with several other institutions. The results of the study were
set out briefly in a guidance note which had been sent to its country offices.

UNDP had drawn a nunber of |essons fromits experience. First of all
the comm tment of senior nanagers, whether at headquarters or at the country

level, and staff participation were essential. Secondly, those institutions



E/ 1997/ SR 20
page 5

whi ch had i ncorporated gender mainstreamng into their practice and procedures
were better able to integrate it into their programmes. Thirdly, the role of
units responsi bl e for gender issues as catal ysts and in nonitoring was

deci sive, and their heads should be at a senior decision-nmaking |level within
the organi zation. Fourthly, each individual staff menber was responsible for
gender naminstreanming within the organi zation's progranmmes. Wen

responsi bility was shared, gender nainstreanm ng noved extrenely rapidly.
Lastly, policies and institutions should evolve so as to be able actively to
pronmote and facilitate the attai nnent of gender equality. That woul d take
time, and UNDP was wor ki ng on ways of establishing short and nedi umterm
benchrmarks of progress. 1In order to take account of all those |lessons, in
addition to issuing guidelines to its offices, which were urged to assign

20 per cent of their resources to the advancement of wonen, UNDP had appoi nted
20 gender advi sers who woul d work with the resident coordinators.

I ndicators to assess the changes nade - occasionally a difficult task -
were inportant, as was identifying the results achi eved by organi zati ons.
Accordingly, in conjunction with its partners, UNDP was endeavouring to
perfect newindicators. It was reviewing all its job descriptions, which
woul d henceforth include mandatory accountability for gender nainstream ng.
Anot her probl emwas the devel opment of staff capacity for gender
mai nstream ng. The Gender in Devel oprment programme was working closely with
the Learning Resources Centre in integrating gender mainstreaning. As part of
its support for the resident coordinator system UNDP was cooperating with
UNI FEM whi ch ensured that the priorities of wonen's organizati ons were
reflected in inter-agency discussion and action. UNDP held regular joint
neetings with UNNFEM which henceforth participated in its programe
managenment nonitoring committee. It had al so benefited fromthe activities of
the Division for the Advancenent of Wnen and of the International Research
and Training Institute for the Advancenment of Wrnen (I NSTRAW and fromthe
work of bilateral agencies. One of the most inportant areas of cooperation in
whi ch UNDP had been engaged was common country assessnment: in that area, it
was seeking to ensure the inclusion of gender indicators concerning, in
particul ar, poverty, access to political, social and econom c resources,
nutritional levels, children's health and education, and food security. After

gi ving sone exanpl es of inter-agency collaboration in the field, he concluded



E/ 1997/ SR 20
page 6

by expressing the hope that the current reformof the O ganizati on woul d make
it possible to provide a structure and deternine priorities that would favour
gender equality.

Ms. BERTIN  (Executive Director, Wrld Food Programre (WP)) said
that gender mainstreamng in all the programres and policies of the
United Nations bodi es was an objective that produced nore words than deeds,
despite the Secretary-General's strong noral commtnent to it. WP s role was
to provide food aid to poor, hungry people. However, wonen nade up the bul k
of the world' s poor, and it was when assi stance was provided to themdirectly
that it had the greatest inpact on the food security of househol ds and on
children's nutrition. 1In order to inplenment the coomtnents made at Beijing,
WFP was ensuring that wonen directly received a greater share of food aid and
had access, on equal ternms, to gainful activity and education. |In order to
integrate gender mainstreanming into all its activities, it had set concrete
obj ectives, strategies and success indicators. Lastly, in order to ensure
accountability for its results, it had taken a nunber of measures: the
preparati on of gender-di saggregated statistics, the adoption of plans of
action conprising goals and indicators to put into practice the conmtments
made at Beijing, the establishnment, at headquarters, of an ad hoc team
responsible for nmonitoring the inplementation of all plans of action and for
giving its views on an overall strategy, the definition of gender-specific
skill profiles for managenent and advisory positions, the introduction of a
network of liaison centres at headquarters and in the different countries, and
the preparati on of reports on the nmeasures adopted to inplenment the
coomtnents to wonen. In addition, WP had begun to draw up gender-specific
i ndicators for each sector of assistance and to train staff in the use of
qualitative foll owup techniques. As the reduction of gender inequality was
an integral part of strategic regional planning, appropriate training was al so
provi ded. Lastly, accountability al so concerned the percentage of financia
resources assigned to programes on behal f of women.

Where the proportion of wonen anong WFP's staff was concerned, she said
that 25 per cent of officials at headquarters were wonen, in conparison with
only 20 in the field offices. WP would endeavour to inprove those figures.

Ms. TRONE (Deputy Executive Director, United Nations Popul ation
Fund (UNFPA)) said that she first of all wished heartedly to commend the



E/ 1997/ SR 20
page 7

Division for the Advancenment of Wnen for having prepared the report under
consi deration, which was a major step forward in terns of the anal ysis and
recommendati ons nmade. GCender equality was still a revolutionary idea, and it
was essential for everyone to appreciate its inportance. The menbers of
organi zati ons and of CGovernments thensel ves should integrate the concept in
their programmes. The latter should aimto change individuals' attitudes and
thinking and to take into account the fundamental realities affecting
individual lives. Wnen should realize they were the equals of nmen, so that
they coul d devel op the confidence to take advantage of the choi ces and
opportunities open to them Men should be convinced of gender equality, so
that they could accept the changes the concept entail ed.

It was essential to foster an enabling environnent for individuals to
make the nost of their potential. To do so, |eaders at all levels should
resol utely support gender equality and adopt neasures to nake it effective.

As early as in 1976 UNFPA had published guidelines for incorporating wonen's
concerns into popul ation and devel opnent activities. 1n 1995 it had published
new gui del i nes on gender, popul ati on and devel opment to reflect inits
programres the full variety of gender-sensitive concerns. The probl emwas
that al though nmany peopl e had becone accustoned to the concept of wonen in
devel opnent, the concept of gender in devel opment was still ill-understood

To establish an enabling environment it was essential also to train
hunman resources and to reinforce institutional capacities. Theoretical and
nmet hodol ogi cal training was essential, and UNFPA was currently training all of
its staff on gender parity and preparing a training manual for nationa
counterpart staff.

UNFPA was assisting mnistries in different countries to formul ate
policies, strategies and guidelines for gender mai nstreaning, to generate and
anal yse gender-di saggregated data and to integrate the research findings into
programmes. It relied on the mass nedia and on community participation inits
efforts to influence individual attitudes and behaviour. Al the efforts nade
to foster gender equity and equality shoul d be nonitored and assessed, and
quantitative and qualitative indicators had been devel oped for the purpose.
NG3s clearly had an inportant role to play, and their capacity should be
strengt hened. UNFPA was actively contributing to the work of severa

i nter-agency bodies - such as the Task Force on Basic Social Services for



E/ 1997/ SR 20
page 8

Al - and cooperated w th numerous agenci es or organi zations (the D vision for
t he Advancenent of Wnen, the Conm ssion on Human Rights, the Internationa
Red CGross). In March 1996 it had organi zed a technical consultation on fenale
genital nutilation at Addis Ababa, which had been attended by participants
from25 countries, international NG, United Nations agencies and the
O gani zation of African Unity. UNFPA, UN CEF and WHO had recently published a
joint statenent calling for the eradication of female genital rmutilation.

Cender equality and equity had been recognized as an essential aspect of
devel opnent and a vast array of organi zations and bil ateral donors were
wor ki ng to advance the gender agenda, making it all the nore necessary to
coordinate efforts to avert overlap and duplication. Regarding resources,
gender issues should not be seen as a source of “added cost”: on the
contrary, they were an integral aspect of the design and formnul ation of
policies and activities. Human and financial resources were neverthel ess
needed to ensure that programres sufficiently addressed gender issues and that
appropriate nmeasures were taken. To advocate gender equality was to advocate
justice and human rights.

Ms. CH NERY-HESSE (Deputy Director-Ceneral, International Labour

Ofice) said that the reason I LO attached such inportance to gender equity was
that efforts to conbat discrimnation in enploynent had been at the root of
its action throughout its 78 years of existence. She pointed out that women
coul d not acquire self-esteemand sel f-confidence unless they were able to
find work which gave theman incone and i ndependence. 1LOs role was to
ensure they had access to enpl oynent on equal terns.

To be effective, gender nai nstream ng shoul d be based on research and on
the nore technical aspects of the work of the United Nations specialized
agencies: policy formul ati on, devel opment of guidelines and training
material, etc. Staff working in those fields - upstreamfrom operationa
activities - should therefore also be sensitized to issues of gender equity.

Some of the first 1LO Conventions, adopted in 1919, were essentially
designed to protect women: naternity protection, nightwork, equal wages and
equal opportunities. As early as the 1950s, the need to integrate gender

equity issues had been recogni zed, and Convention No. 156, adopted in 1980,



E/ 1997/ SR 20
page 9

referred no longer to wonen, but to workers with famly responsibilities. It
was clearly inportant to sensitize the governing bodies of the specialized
agencies - and in particular of ILO- to the need for gender mainstreamng in
standards, as it was they who approved t hem

I LO was endeavouring further to sensitize not only all levels of its
staff to gender issues, but also its constituents. At headquarters, there was
a special unit responsible for women workers' questions. Gender specialists
were enployed in all countries and were networked.

In individual countries, programres focusing on wonen were the first
victinms of budgetary cuts. For that reason, efforts at sensitization should
essentially target decision-nakers. However, the cuts in question would not
occur if the progranmes had been correctly integrated into broader programmes.
Wthin ILO assigning a budgetary itemto gender nainstream ng woul d make it
possible to rem nd Governments of their responsibilities when they introduced
austerity measures.

Ms. KING (Special Adviser to the Secretary-Ceneral on Gender
| ssues and Advancenent of Wnen) summarized the introductory statenents. She
said that it was clear that the advancenent of woren had nade spectacul ar
progress, not only within the entire United Nations system but also at
national level. dearly, gender equality was henceforth recogni zed as a
fundanental human right: recognition of the rights of wonen, taken in
i sol ati on, had been superseded by recognition of their role within the famly
and soci ety.

Each of the organs and agencies of the United Nations system had
apparently recogni zed the need to devel op genui ne strategi es and to undertake
specific actions for the advancenent of wonen, by resorting to training,
establishing liaison centres, preparing indicators and carrying out an
assessnent of the progress made in the field and at headquarters.

It was apparently al so recogni zed that wonen had a specific role to play
in the devel oping countries, particularly with regard to ot her wonen, and
especially at the local level. 1In that regard, tribute should be paid in
particul ar to UNFPA and UN CEF, who were largely responsible for the progress
nmade and who were on the threshol d of achieving nunerical gender parity within

their staff.



E/ 1997/ SR 20
page 10

She drew the conclusion that it was no | onger sufficient to set up
departnents or to adopt programmes focusing on the advancenent of women or
superficially to advocate gender parity: it was henceforth necessary to cal
for a whol esal e commtrment by national societies and for States to provide
support.

M. SABOA (Brazil) asked what inpact the current reforns within
the United Nations systemnight have on the gender mainstreaning in the
system s programmes and policies. He asked whether it mght not be negative,
and whet her the increasing tendency to recruit United Nations staff on a
tenporary basis mght not have a harnful inpact on the advancenent of wonen.

He al so asked how the adoption of a goal of strict numerical gender
parity was conpatible with the principle of equitable geographic
representation.

Ms. WORGETTER (Cbserver for Austria) said that she would like to

know what institutional changes were planned, for exanple, at UNDP, to achieve
gender parity (for exanple in terns of providing information on trends,
participation in integration by the various agencies, analysis of the data
coll ected, the decisions taken by the agencies, the anounts assi gned by
budgets to departnents responsible for the advancenment of wonen and the
assessnent of integration programres already carried out).

M. MABILANGAN (Philippines) pointed out that questions connected

with the protection of the rights of wonen and their advancenent as a whol e
were frequently addressed simultaneously by several organs within the

United Nations system As a result, the necessary action would require
extrenely cl ose coordination and a human approach. For exanple, the problem
of violence against mgrant fenale workers was wi thin the purview of both the
Comm ssion on the Status of Wnen and the Conm ssion on Hunan R ghts, as wel
as, no doubt, that of UNHCR 1LO and UNFPA. He would |ike to know which
agency actually was currently responsible for the protection of femal e m grant
wor ker s.

Ms. KUNADI (India), said that India attached great inportance to
gender nainstreaming in all the programes and policies of the United Nations
organs and advocated the inplenentation, in accordance with a fixed tinetable,
of the relevant provisions of the Beijing Platformfor Action, to be revi ewed

in the year 2000, and nade several suggestions in that connection.



E/ 1997/ SR 20
page 11

The intergovernnental bodies within the United Nations system shoul d al
systematically integrate the advancenent of wonen into their work, and
particularly into their programe budgets and nedi umtermplans. To achieve
the same goal, it was also inportant to enhance harnoni zati on and coordi nation
of the work programmes of the functional comm ssions of the Council, while the
regi onal conm ssions should be called on to act as catal ysts at the regiona
level. The Council should al so be authorized, possibly on an annual basis, to
noni tor gender mainstream ng within the functional comm ssions, particularly
as part of the followup to najor United Nations conferences.

It would al so be useful to strengthen accountability within the
United Nations system and her del egation would prefer directives, rather than
di scretionary guidelines, allowing themgreater flexibility, to be sent to
institutions. It was also inperative for United Nations funds and programres
and the specialized agencies to address gender concerns when setting
priorities, allocating resources and identifying actions to be undertaken.

The participants at the Beijing Conference had conmmtted thensel ves to
strengt heni ng certain mechanisns, in particular the Division for the
Advancenent of Wnen, the International Research and Training Institute for
t he Advancenent of VWren (I NSTRAW and the United Nations Devel opnent Fund for
Wnen, and that comm tnent should be fulfilled. In addition, the
Uni ted Nations systemshould as quickly as possible elinmnate barriers to the
advancenent of wormen within its own departnents and organi zati ons. \Wnen
shoul d be given priority for appoi ntment to posts subject to geographica
di stribution, and particularly senior policy-level and decision-maki ng posts.
The informati on provi ded by previous speakers to the Council was encouragi ng,
but nuch renained to be done. Efforts should be pursued with greater vigour.

Ms. MOORE (Canada) said that the progress nmade since the Beijing
Conf erence was very encouragi ng and the enhancenent of responsibility at the
hi gher |evels of the Secretariat was auspi ci ous.

The Associate Adnministrator of UNDP had referred to the results of a
study concerni ng some 20 countries, and she asked hi m whet her UNDP had drawn
| essons fromit for its programes and policies. She also asked for details
of UNDP's cooperation with UN FEM

Ms. FLOR (CGernany) thanked the Special Adviser to the

Secretary-CGeneral for having stressed the need further to increase



E/ 1997/ SR 20
page 12

responsibility, at the highest |evel of the United Nations system for

i ntegrating the advancenent of wonen throughout the system The fundanenta
nornms and principles of their advancement were apparently established, and it
was henceforth necessary to make themtangible. In that connection it was
appropriate to recall that although the principle of “equal pay for equa
wor k” had been theoretically established since 1944, it had not yet becone
establ i shed practice. Her delegation would Iike to know what practica
difference there woul d be between institutional directives and guidelines in
terns of data collection, the redesigning of questionnaires, etc.

She asked the United Nations H gh Conm ssioner for Refugees for details
of the suggested optional protocols to the nemoranda of understandi ng reached
inthe field with institutions. She asked the Associate Adm nistrator of UNDP
whet her 20 per cent of overall projects were focused on the advancenent of
wonen and 80 per cent on other targets.

Ms. KING (Special Adviser to the Secretary-Ceneral on Gender
| ssues and Advancenent of Wnen) rem nded the representative of Brazil that it
was not yet known what reforms of the United Nations systemthe
Secretary-CGeneral would shortly announce. However, it was certain that gender
parity within the staff of the Secretariat would renmain a goal.

Ms. OGATA (United Nations H gh Comm ssioner for Refugees (UNHCR))
said that the principle of equitable geographical distribution was applied
very flexibly by her Ofice, whose budget was funded by voluntary
contributions. UNHCR was above all concerned to ensure that donor countries
whi ch thensel ves had to resol ve refugee probl ens were represented anong its
staff. The Ofice therefore had all the flexibility necessary to ensure ful
gender parity anmong its staff, which was noreover its current practice with
regard to both pronotion and recruitnent.

She reninded the representati ve of the Philippines that UNHCR s nandat e
did not extend to fermale mgrant workers. Al though they occasionally
requested asylum it was desirable to separate those two quite distinct
i ssues.

Regar di ng the suggested optional protocols to the agreenents reached
with institutions present in the field al ongside UNHCR, she said that she had
not yet begun any official discussions. She sinply felt that the tine had

cone to consider the matter



E/ 1997/ SR 20
page 13

M. Henze (Gernmany)., Vice-President, took the chair
Ms. BERTINL  (World Food Programme (WFP)), replying to the

representative of Brazil, said that in recent years WP had i ndeed resorted
nore frequently to tenporary recruitment, although it was still possible for
specialists to obtain a conventional contract of enploynent. However, in both
cases, gender bal ance was nore or |ess assured. |In addition, conpliance with
the principle of geographical distribution posed a problem WP attenpted to
recruit staff in the devel oping countries, but the skilled staff it required
were clearly nore nunerous in the devel oped countries. Neverthel ess, WP
endeavoured to ensure that 50 per cent of its recruits were wonen, 50 per cent
of whomwere fromthe devel opi ng countri es.

She sincerely hoped that where the question of gender parity within the
Secretariat's staff was concerned, the Council would ask to be provided with
precise results in terns of expenditure made and the actual nunbers of staff.

M. AHMED (Associate Administrator, United Nations Devel opnent
Programme (UNDP)), said, inreply to the representative of Brazil, that when
UNDP was required to inplement refornms, it attenpted to avoid introducing
distortion. As it was not required strictly to observe the principle of
geographi cal distribution, it recruited half of its staff fromthe donor
countries and half fromthe devel opi ng countries benefiting fromthe
Pr ogr anme.

Inreply to the Austrian del egation, he said that UNDP s overall goal of
a 28 per cent fenale staff conponent had al ready been achi eved, and the result
shoul d be inproved on by the end of 1997. In addition, several wonen had been
appoi nted to nmanagerial positions, and it was to be expected that there would
be several nore such appointrents in the next few nonths.

The review of budgetary allotnents for country programres woul d take
into account the decision systenatically to give priority to the advancemnent
of wonen, and the decision would be reflected both in staff training and in
the recruitrment of consultants. Regarding the hierarchy and the transm ssion
of information, he recalled that UNDP had set up an ad hoc mechani smfor
gender nainstreaming in its programres. In addition, UNDP and UN FEM hel d
joint neetings and had al ready considered, at the regional |evel, the means of

attaining the goal s.



E/ 1997/ SR 20
page 14

Inreply to the Indian delegation, he said that follow ng the Beijing
Conf erence, cooperation with UNIFEM had considerably intensified. It was
henceforth based on a note setting out the specific mandate of each
institution with regard to gender mai nstreaning. He said that the note was
avai |l abl e for delegations to consult.

He assured the representative of Germany that UNDP had indeed all ocated
20 per cent of its total funds to gender nainstreaming in its programres and
policies. Were the global programme was concerned, 10 per cent of funds were
all ocated to mai nstream ng and the budget had three ains: to consolidate,
perfect and inplenment nethodol ogi es and instrunents for gender mai nstream ng
in UNDP activities; to encourage countries benefiting fromthe programme to
devel op appropriate practices and to encourage partnerships to enanci pate
wonen and to involve themin decision-making. At the country level, resident
representatives had been requested to secure acceptance of the idea that
20 per cent of the basic resource allocation should be assigned to
i ntegration.

He inforned the Canadi an del egation that UNDP certainly took into
account the |l essons drawn fromthe studies, and intended, in particular, to
review the country guidelines in their light. He also said that a fair share
of the lessons should be inplenented al so at headquarters

M. GaluSka (Czech Republic) resumed the chair

Ms. TRONE (United Nations Popul ation Fund (UNFPA)), said, in reply

to the representative of the Philippines, that where m grant workers were
concerned UNFPA' s nandate was essentially to provide support for studies into
m grations, taking account, inter alia, of gender-specific factors.
Reproductive health was one area in which refugees were provided with

assi stance. UNFPA was endeavouring, in cooperation with the other agencies

concerned, to extend that type of assistance to other categories of

beneficiaries, and possibly to fenale mgrants. It was currently focusing on
provi ding wonen with infornation at an earlier stage, i.e. in their countries
of origin.

Inreply to the representati ve of Germany, she said that what
di sti ngui shed guidelines was that they required results. At UNFPA a project

could not be approved if it did not contain a gender-specific dinmension.



E/ 1997/ SR 20
page 15

The goal of parity had been achieved at UNFPA in the professional
category, but not yet in general services. There were nore than 50 per cent
of wonen on the Executive Board. Those results were the outcone of a
del i berate policy which had been pursued for 10 years with the active support
of the heads of UNFPA

Ms. KING (Special Adviser to the Secretary-CGeneral on Gender
| ssues and Advancernent of Wbmen) pointed out that there were many agencies
within the United Nati ons systemdealing with mgrant workers, but that each
of themhad a precise mandate. The Popul ati on D vi si on was not bei ng
di ssolved; it henceforth cane under the new departnments with an econom ¢ and
social vocation. Finally, the principle of equitable geographica
di stribution should not prevent the 20 or so countries that were not
represented in the United Nations Secretariat fromsubmtting womnen
candi dat es.

Ms. ENCGELBRECHT (South Africa) asked whether quantitative and

qualitative indicators were being prepared and whether any efforts were being
made by the various organi zati ons to harnoni ze them She al so asked what
neasures were being taken systemw de to ensure that a gender-specific
approach was integrated into all activities.

Ms. HODEN (Wnited Kingdom said that it was clear that gender
mai nstreanming in all progranmres and policies entailed an integrated approach
si mul t aneousl y focusing on capacity-building, training, institutiona
reform etc. As resident coordinators had a key role to play in encouraging
such an approach, she asked what neasures were being taken or planned to draw
their attention to the problem She asked how they fitted into efforts to
foster an enabling environment for devel oprent.

Ms. BANYA (Uganda) said that in order to renedy the regiona
i mbal ance in United Nations recruitnent, applications fromwomen fromthe
| east devel oped countries shoul d receive special attention. She pointed out
that under the recruitment freeze, preference was generally given to
appl i cants supported by donor countries to fill junior professional officer
posts. She asked what percentage of wonen had been recruited to the
United Nations Secretariat fromthe devel oping countries during the previous

five years.



E/ 1997/ SR 20
page 16

M. WNNCK (United States of Amrerica) wondered whether it would
be possible to integrate gender nminstream ng into progranmmes and activities
focusi ng on good governance, which was still a new area. He also asked to
what extent the Bretton Wods institutions and the United Nations systemas a
whol e coordinated their activities in order coherently to integrate
gender-specific issues into their various programres, particularly in terns of
macr oeconom c poli ci es.

M. DAMN (Cbserver for Swaziland) enphasized that it was
crucially inportant to sensitize national officials and | eaders to gender
equity. Appropriate ad hoc nmachinery shoul d be set up. He asked what
nmeasures were being taken by UNHCR on behal f of refugee wonmen in the
G eat Lakes region and what neasures were being taken to address the situation
of fenale mgrants.

Ms. LI Sangu (China) asked how concern for gender equity was

reflected in the budget. As UNDP devoted 10 per cent of its funds to
gender-specific activities, she asked how that resource allocation was
reflected in the country progranmmes.

Ms. OGATA (United Nations H gh Conmm ssioner for Refugees (UNHCR))
said that UNHCR had appoi nted a senior coordi nator for refugee wonen, five
regi onal advisers and, at the country level, 122 focal points for refugee
wonen. The ot her conponent of UNHCR s action was training. Wthout going
into details of the action undertaken on behal f of refugee wonen in the
G eat Lakes region, she nmentioned the initiative on behal f of Raandan wonen
and referred to the inportance given to wonen and to enpowering themin
post-conflict situations.

Ms. BERTINL (Wrld Food Programme (WFP)) said that infornation on
i ndi cators could be found in a docunent available in the neeting roomsetting
out WFP's policy on indicators. In her view, concern for gender equity could
be one of the criteria adopted for assessing resident coordinators.

Ms. ACUNER (Turkey) enphasized the political dinmension of the
issue. It was not sinply a natter of involving wonen nore fully in
deci si on-maki ng, but of radically changing orientations and priorities. Such

a thorough change necessarily net with resistance at all |levels. She asked



E/ 1997/ SR 20
page 17

whether it was the responsibility of UNDP's field offices to overcone
resi stance and whet her any neasures were planned or under way to transform
wonen' s issues into a topic for concerted action with national authorities.

M. ALOM (Bangl adesh) pointed out that, under Article 101 of the
Charter of the United Nations, there was nothing to authorize special measures
to recruit wonen to the United Nations.

M. FERNANDEZ (Spain) stressed that the Econom c and Soci a

Counci| was responsi ble for ensuring gender parity as part of the followup to
United Nations world conferences. He shared the opinion of the representative
of Turkey and thought that the political dinension should be referred to in
the commonly agreed conclusions. The report of the Secretary-Cenera
cont ai ned excel | ent proposal s concerni ng the enhancenent of coordination
within the systemin order better to integrate gender mnai nstream ng.

Ms. WILHELMSEN (Coserver for Norway) said that the statenments nade

by the representati ves of WFP and UNHCR on the integrati on of gender-specific

factors in the humanitarian field were very noteworthy. It would be desirable
for agencies to adopt a standard formto report on the progress nmade in gender
mai nstream ng. The devel opnent of common indicators could facilitate

har moni zat i on.

M. QUTIERREZ (Qoserver for the Dom nican Republic) said that in

her view concern for gender equity should be one of the criteria for funding
projects. She advocated strengthening the International Research and Traini ng
Institute for the Advancerment of Vnen (1 NSTRAW.

M. IBRAHM (Malaysia) said that he did not believe that it was
necessarily a bad thing to entrust nmen with advocati ng gender equity. He
suggested that UNIFEM woul d benefit if nen were better represented in it.

M. AHVED (United Nations Devel opnent Programme (UNDP)) said
that UNDP was currently endeavouring to perfect the gender enpowerment
nmeasure (GEM and the gender-rel ated devel opnent index (GD). It was the
responsibility of officials to ensure that all programres included specific
i ndi cati ons of the expected progress in the area of gender parity and the
advancenent of wonen. Coals were set for all projects, on the basis of

specific indicators, directed to elimnation of poverty anong woren and



E/ 1997/ SR 20
page 18

i nproved access by themto funds. It was arule in all the country offices
that orientations should be defined in consultation with wonen's associ ations
and wonen's NXCs.

UNDP was endeavouring to enhance the role of resident coordinators in
respect of gender mainstream ng through a cl oser partnership with UN FEM
Where cooperation with M and the Wrld Bank was concerned, the Inter-Agency
Task Force on the Enabling Environment for Econonic and Soci al Devel opnent,
set up as part of the followup to the United Nations internationa
conferences, and chaired by the Wrld Bank, dealt in particular with
gender - speci fic issues.

UNDP devoted 20 per cent (not 10 per cent, as China had stated) of its
overal | resources to gender-specific projects and hoped to be able to assign a
further 10 per cent to actions for the advancenent of wonen. Resident
representatives were invited to discuss with national authorities to convince
themof the need to devote 20 per cent of the funds for country progranmres to
gender-specific activities.

Ms. TRONE (United Nations Popul ati on Fund (UNFPA)) said that
the efforts at rationalization and harnoni zati on under way in severa
i nternational organizations should shortly lead to a set of common indicators.
Ms. KING (Special Adviser to the Secretary-CGeneral on Gender
| ssues and Advancernent of Whnen) said that the Bretton Wods institutions were
very active within the Inter-Agency Conmttee on Wnen and Gender Equality and
were helping to draw up indicators and to prepare statistics on
gender - speci fi ¢ aspects.

The representative of Bangl adesh had raised a very inportant issue
Where recruitment was concerned, the United Nations O fice of Human Resources
Managenent al ways bal anced Articles 8 and 101 of the Charter of the
United Nations. |In that connection, it should be borne in mnd that article 4
of the Convention on the Elimnation of Al Forns of D scrimnation agai nst
VWnen supported the adoption of special measures aimed at elimnating such
discrimnation. In the same connection, the United Nations Adm nistrative
Tribunal had in recent years handed down two decisive rulings confirmng the
validity of special nmeasures on behal f of wonen until the goal of parity was

achi eved.

The neeting rose at 1.20 p.m




